
Southern California Library Cooperative 
254 North Lake Avenue #874 • Pasadena, California 91101 

(626) 283-5949 •  Fax (626) 283-5949
Website: http://www.socallibraries.org • E-mail: sclcadmin@socallibraries.org 

Southern California Library Cooperative 
Administrative Council Meeting 

Wednesday, November 30, 2022 
2:15-4:15pm 

Hybrid Meeting 
Whittier Central Library  

7344 Washington Ave. Whittier, CA 90602 

AGENDA 

All items may be considered for action. 

1. Opening Gary Shaffer 
a. Chairperson’s Welcome
b. Roll Call

2. Public Comment
Opportunity for any guest or member of the public to address the Council
on any item of SCLC business.

3. Consent Calendar     Gary Shaffer
(ACTION)
All items on the consent calendar may be approved by a single motion.
Any Council member may request an item be removed from the consent
calendar and placed on the agenda for discussion.
a. Minutes of the August 24, 2022 Administrative Council meeting

4. Adoption of Agenda Gary Shaffer 

5. SCLC Controller Update Gary Shaffer/Wayne Walker 
(DISCUSSION)

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84608260766?pwd=MjR4VkFGTHpZQzF3VDI4MktNWnU3dz09 

Meeting ID: 846 0826 0766 
Passcode: 519561 

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84608260766?pwd=MjR4VkFGTHpZQzF3VDI4MktNWnU3dz09


Southern California Library Cooperative 
254 North Lake Avenue #874 • Pasadena, California 91101 

 (626) 283-5949 •  Fax (626) 283-5949 
Website: http://www.socallibraries.org • E-mail: sclcadmin@socallibraries.org 

 

 
 
 

 
6. Budget Status Report FY2022/23   Caryn Shapiro 

(DISCUSSION) 
 

7. Audit Report FY2020/21    Caryn Shapiro 
(ACTION) 
 

8. Strategic Plan Update     Elizabeth Goldman 
(DISCUSSION) 
 

9. PressReader and Los Angeles Times  Gary Shaffer 
(DISCUSSION) 

 
10. Closed Session – Public Employee   Gary Shaffer 

Appointment, Executive Director 
(ACTION) 
 

11. Reconvene from Closed Session   Gary Shaffer 
(ACTION) 

 
12. eBooks for All      Chris Durr 

(DISCUSSION) 
 

13. Committee Reports       
a. Audit and Finance Committee   Jesse Walker-Lanz 
b. Technology Committee    Nikki Winslow 

 
14. Other       Gary Shaffer 

“...that is, matters initiated in the present meeting.” Robert’s Rules of Order, 
Revised, III, p.21.  Limited by Brown Act to discussion only. 
 

15. State Library Report     Natalie Cole 
 

16. Chair Report      Gary Shaffer 
 

17. Adjournment      Gary Shaffer 

2



Email completed forms to: lgraver@socallibraries.org 

ACTION ITEMS 

 

Meeting: ________SCLC Administrative Council Meeting____________________ 

Date: ______________November 30, 2022_______________________________ 

Library: ___________________________________________________________ 

Name: ____________________________________________________________

Signature: ______________________ 

 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

 

 

 

 

Date: ______________________ 

 

Agenda Item:  ___________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

 

 

 

 

3



Email completed forms to: lgraver@socallibraries.org 

Name: __________________________ 

Date:___________________________ 

Page 2 

 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

 

Agenda Item:  ____________________  

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

 

Agenda Item:  ___________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

 

Agenda Item:  ___________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

 

 

 

4



 

Southern California Library Cooperative 
254 North Lake Avenue #874 • Pasadena, California 91101 

 (626) 283-5949 •  Fax (626) 283-5949 
Website: http://www.socallibraries.org • E-mail: sclcadmin@socallibraries.org 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AC Agenda Item 03a 
Southern California Library Cooperative 

Administrative Council Meeting 
Wednesday, August 24, 2022 

2:15-4:15pm 
Hybrid Meeting 

Alhambra Library  
101 S. First Street, Alhambra, CA 91801 

 
Minutes draft 

 
Attendance 
Addington, Jennifer – Palos Verdes 
Anderson, Susan – Redondo Beach 
Behle, Kelly – Simi Valley 
Bradley, Darlene – Arcadia 
Broman, Susan – LAPL 
Buth, karen – Beverly Hills 
Conwell, Christine – Moorpark 
Cousin, Heather – Thousand Oaks 
Garcia, Diana – Moorpark 
Goldman, Elizabeth – Burbank 
Herbert, Mark – El Segundo 
Lockwood, Barbara – Calabasas 
LohGuan, Hilda – Alhambra 
Maghsoudi, Paymaneh – Whittier 
Nasr, Mandy – Camarillo 
Regan, Leila – Sierra Madre 
Schram, Nancy – Ventura 
Shaffer, Gary – Glendale 
Shupe, Robert – Palmdale 
Stone, Janet - Glendora 
Tovar, Cecilia – Santa Monica 
Torres, Anita – Pomona 
Vera, Linda – San Marino 
Vonnegut, Shannon – Santa Clarita 
Walker-Lanz, Jesse – CoLA 
Winslow, Nikki - Altadena 
 

Other 
Clanton, JR – Berry Dunn 
Cole, Natalie – CSL 
Dinuzzo, Carol – SCLC former employee 
Geneck, Jason – Berry Dunn 
Graver, Lori – SCLC 
Hildreth, Susan – Berry Dunn 
Le Conge-Ziesenhemne, Monique - 
Berry Dunn 
Snodgrass, Nerissa – SCLC 
Walker, Wayne - SCLC 
 
Absent 
Arroyo, Kerri – Inglewood 
Balli, Shayna – Irwindale 
Billings, Cathy – South Pasadena 
DeLeon, Cathy – Long Beach 
Dickow, Ben – Downey 
Evans, Lisa – Covina 
Graf, Ann – Azusa 
Hughes, Charles – Signal Hill 
McDonald, Tim – Pasadena 
Neal, Alan – Oxnard 
Patterson, Jennifer – Thousand Oaks 
Raia, Deborah – Santa Fe Springs 
Vance, Carey - Monrovia 
 

 

 

5



 

Southern California Library Cooperative 
254 North Lake Avenue #874 • Pasadena, California 91101 

 (626) 283-5949 •  Fax (626) 283-5949 
Website: http://www.socallibraries.org • E-mail: sclcadmin@socallibraries.org 

 

 
 
 

 
 

1. Opening       Gary Shaffer 
Meeting called to order at 2:16pm. 
 

2. Public Comment 
Opportunity for any guest or member of the public to address the Council 
on any item of SCLC business. 
None. 
 

3. Consent Calendar     Gary Shaffer 
All items on the consent calendar may be approved by a single motion.  
Any Council member may request an item be removed from the consent 
calendar and placed on the agenda for discussion. 
a. Minutes of the May 25, 2022 Administrative Council meeting 

MSP (Shupe/Stone) to approve the Consent Calendar, without 
changes. 
24 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain 

    
4. Adoption of Agenda     Gary Shaffer 

Chair adopted Agenda as presented, without objection. 
 

5. Budget Status Report FY2021/22   Carol Dinuzzo 
Most membership dues have been received and reminders have been sent 
to any jurisdictions with outstanding invoices. Most grant revenue has been 
received with the final 10% expected once all final reporting has been 
completed. Overall, all expenses fall within the total budgeted amount for 
the fiscal year. However, there were a few line items where some 
unanticipated expenses were incurred.  
• Personnel Expenses – With the retirement of the Executive Director in 
February, came the additional expense of a full payout of vacation time 
upon departure. Additionally, there was a slight increase in dental, vision 
and life insurance that occurred mid-year. 
• Operating Expenses – Increase due to replacement of staff laptops and 
associated software and IT support. Also, a slight increase in postage due 
to additional grant support.  
CLSA rollover funds:  
• FY 2019/20: All funds have been expended.  
• FY 2020/21: All funds have been expended with the exception of a 
remaining balance $65,848 originally earmarked for Digilabs and will be 
reallocated to use toward E-Resources.  
Pending final close out of FY2021/22 grants. 
 
 
 

6



 

Southern California Library Cooperative 
254 North Lake Avenue #874 • Pasadena, California 91101 

 (626) 283-5949 •  Fax (626) 283-5949 
Website: http://www.socallibraries.org • E-mail: sclcadmin@socallibraries.org 

 

 
6. Budget Status Report FY2022/23   Carol Dinuzzo 

All approved CLSA allocations and current grant awarded amounts have 
been included. PLSEP grant awards are still pending. With no other grants 
or special projects on the horizon, it is expected that there will be a 
significant shortfall in revenue. Although, there will be some roll over funds 
once FY2021/22 closes out, it is likely that reserve funds may need to be 
utilized to cover personnel and operations by the end of this fiscal year.  
 
Most expenditures have been personnel related along with a few 
operational costs.  
 
CLSA Rollover Funds:  
• FY 2020/21: All funds have been expended with the exception of a 
remaining balance $65,848 originally earmarked for Digilabs and will be 
reallocated to use toward E-Resources.  
• FY2021/22: There will be rollover funds for E-Resources ($288,419), 
Audit ($6,905), Delivery ($22,013), and Telecommunications ($21,742). 
There is also a balance of $35,000 in Resource Sharing originally set aside 
for the Digilab project that may need to be reallocated, depending on how 
to Administrative Council would like to utilize these funds.  
 
Pension Liability: The annual prepayment for the CalPERS pension liability 
was paid in July. Although there has been discussion about making an 
additional discretionary payment (ADP) toward the liability, it is 
recommended that this be put on hold until the deficit in revenue is 
addressed.  
 
Fiscal Impact: Potential shortfall in revenue for the current fiscal year. 
 

7. Strategic Plan Update     Elizabeth Goldman 
Council suggestion to amend the performance measure assessment to 
include “Improve satisfaction.”  Executive Committee recommended 
approval. MSP (Shupe/Torres) to adopt the SCLC 2022-25 Strategic Plan. 
25 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7



 

Southern California Library Cooperative 
254 North Lake Avenue #874 • Pasadena, California 91101 

 (626) 283-5949 •  Fax (626) 283-5949 
Website: http://www.socallibraries.org • E-mail: sclcadmin@socallibraries.org 

 

 
8. PressReader and Los Angeles Times  Gary Shaffer 

Noted that current contract expires in September 2023, and that LA Times 
text only is available via ProQuest. 
MSP (Shupe/Walker-Lanz) to: 
1) Conduct a survey of all member libraries to collect current annual 
spending on physical subscriptions to the LA Times.  
2) Authorize the Chair to draft a letter advising LA Times management of 
the negative impact to our member libraries’ residents, the amount of 
revenue we provide them, and asking them to please enter into 
negotiations with PressReader.  
3) Conduct any follow up negotiations with the LA Times. 
26 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain 
 

9. CLSA Annual Report FY2021/22   Wayne Walker 
MSP (Maghsoudi/LohGuan) to authorize the Interim Executive Director to 
work with the Chair to complete the CLSA 2021/22 Annual Report for 
submission to the State Library by September 6, 2021. 
26 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain 
 

10. SCLC Controller Update    Gary Shaffer 
Executive Committee recommended approval. MSP (Walker-
Lanz/LohGuan) to 
1) Authorize the Chair to enter into an agreement with a temporary agency 
or an accounting firm to fulfill controller duties.  
2) Authorize the Chair to enter into an agreement for accounting consulting 
purposes with one of our sister cooperatives on an as-needed basis. 
26 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain 
 

11. Executive Committee Appointment   Gary Shaffer 
Mark Herbert (El Segundo) self-nominated to fill Statistical Group 5 seat 
left vacant by Sarmiento (Commerce), who retired on August 15, 2022. 
26 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain 

 
12. Committee Updates       

a. Audit and Finance Committee   Jesse Walker-Lanz 
July meeting was cancelled.  Anderson is retiring, which creates a 
vacant seat.  Walker-Lanz requested that members reach out, if 
interested in serving on the committee. 

b. Technology Committee    Nikki Winslow 
Next meeting is October 13, 2022. 

 
13. Remaining Meeting Locations FY2022/23  Gary Shaffer 

Council requests to extend the hybrid model for meetings. 
 
 

8



 

Southern California Library Cooperative 
254 North Lake Avenue #874 • Pasadena, California 91101 

 (626) 283-5949 •  Fax (626) 283-5949 
Website: http://www.socallibraries.org • E-mail: sclcadmin@socallibraries.org 

 

 
 

 
14. Other       Gary Shaffer 

MSP (Winslow/Garcia) to renew compliance with Resolution AB361, and to 
continue meeting under hybrid conditions. 
26 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain 
Stone continues talks with Foothill Transit, for library advertising. 
 

15. State Library Report     Natalie Cole 
Cole encouraged Directors to apply for the AmeriCorps program, which 
funds library staffing; announced new Sustainable California Libraries 
grant; CALL Leadership Development applications open soon; the portal 
for the FY2021/22 Public Libraries Survey will open on September 1, 2022; 
additional Parks Passes will be issued in November. 

 
16. Chair Report      Gary Shaffer 

Shaffer reviewed the recruitment status for Executive Director, and invited 
councilmembers to solicit qualified applicants from their communities.  
 

17. Adjournment      Gary Shaffer 
MSP (Shupe/Regan to adjourn.  Chair adjourned meeting, without 
objection, at 3:53pm. 
 

9



Southern California Library Cooperative 
254 North Lake Avenue #874 • Pasadena, California 91101 

(626) 283-5949 •  Fax (626) 283-5949 
Website: http://www.socallibraries.org • E-mail: sclcadmin@socallibraries.org 

 

 

 

 
  AC Agenda Item 05  

 
 
 
DATE:   November 30, 2022 
TO:   Administrative Council 
FROM:           Gary Shaffer – Administrative Council Chair 
                                Wayne Walker – Interim Executive Director 
SUBJECT:  SCLC Controller Update – (DISCUSSION) 
 
BACKGROUND:  Carol Dinuzzo, SCLC Controller, accepted a position outside of SCLC in 
August leaving the position vacant. The Administrative Council at their August meeting authorized 
the Administrative Council Chair to enter into an agreement with a temporary agency or an 
accounting firm to fulfill controller duties on a temporary basis. In early September an agreement 
was entered into with contractor Caryn Shapiro, CPA, to assist with the Controller duties for a 
period of up to 3 months at $72 per hour (non-benefitted) up to 40 hours per week. (Hourly rate 
similar to approved 22/23 budget for SCLC Controller during same time period.) 
 
In addition, the Administrative Council at their August meeting authorized the Administrative 
Council Chair to enter into an agreement for accounting consulting purposes with one of SCLC’s 
sister cooperatives on an as-needed basis. An agreement was entered into with the Pacific Library 
Partnership at $150 per hour through December 2022. 
 
Recruitment for the permanent Controller was launched on October 7th, with application deadline of 
November 7th. Multiple applications were received and the process to review and evaluate the pool 
of candidates has begun. 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Caryn Shapiro contractor agreement value not to exceed $37,440. PLP contract 
agreement value not to exceed $12,000. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Informational  

10



Southern California Library Cooperative 
254 North Lake Avenue #874 • Pasadena, California 91101 

(626) 283-5949 •  Fax (626) 283-5949 
Website: http://www.socallibraries.org • E-mail: sclchq@socallibraries.org 

 

 

 

 
 AC Agenda Item 06

 
 
DATE:   November 30, 2022 
TO:   SCLC Administrative Council 
FROM:  Caryn Shapiro, Interim Controller, SCLC 
SUBJECT:  Budget Status, FY2022/23 – (DISCUSSION) 
 
BACKGROUND: The Budget Status Report for Fiscal Year 2022/23 is attached for your 
review. 
 
REVENUE: All approved CLSA allocations and current grant awarded amounts have 
been approved. Membership Dues have been collected at 90%. Rollover CLSA Funds 
are being expended. Grant Funds have been received.  
 
EXPENSES: At this stage in the fiscal year, most expenditures have been personnel 
related along with a few operational costs.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Potential shortfall in revenue for the current fiscal year. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Informational. 

11



SCLC FY22/23 Proposed Budget
October 31, 2022

REVENUES/EXPENSES
Projected Prior Year Actuals Balance % Notes

REVENUE
Unrealized

CLSA Communications & Delivery 563,338$   568,881$   563,338$   -$  100% CLSB approved Oct 5, 2022 - Not yet received.

CLSA System Administration 343,401$   342,926$   343,401$   -$  100% CLSB approved Oct 5, 2022 - Not yet received.

System Supplements to CLSA -$   -$  -$  -$  0% N/A
Grant Project Revenue 3,364,024$   3,395,065$   965,754$   2,398,270$   29% Rec'd $724,537 on 10/4 (CLCI $499,537 + Digi $225,000) 

Grant Indirect (All Systems) 286,970$    271,409$   44,697$   242,273$   16% Actual grants awarded

Grant Staffing (All Systems) 94,078$   90,641$   44,590$   49,488$   47% Actual grants awarded

SCLC Member Dues 210,681$    203,984$   189,077$   21,604$   90% $210,683 Total- $19,806 still due
SCLC Califa Memberships 13,590$   13,320$   11,520$   2,070$   85% $13,590 Total - $1,800 still due

Investment Income 18,750$   18,750$   -$  18,750$   0% Projected FY22/23

TOTAL REVENUE 4,894,832$    4,904,976$   2,162,377$   2,711,635$   
Unrestricted 953,880$   927,710$   621,765$   332,115$   Used toward Personnel/Overhead

Restricted 3,927,362$   3,963,946$   1,529,092$   2,398,270$   CLSA and Grant Passthrough Funds

EXPENDITURES

Personnel Services See Unrestricted Revenue - line 16

Salaries, Wages and Payroll taxes 652,945$    589,377$   170,740$   482,204$   26% SCLC Staff & Interim ED plus payroll taxes
Retirement Benefits 71,453$   68,050$   14,424$   57,029$   20% CalPERS

Health Insurance - Current Employees 50,280$   48,000$   10,673$   39,607$   21% Health Stipend 
Health Insurance - Retirees 80,448$   76,800$   17,377$   63,071$   22% Actuals

Dental/Vision 6,552$    6,552$   1,747$   4,805$   27% Ameritas
Life Insurance 1,224$    1,224$   360$   864$   29% Dearborn

CalPERS Unfunded Accrued Liability 154,223$    133,737$   152,775$   1,448$   99% CalPERS - Annual Prepayment(PEPRA & Classic)

Other Personnel Expenses 3,101$    3,101$   -$  3,101$   0% W C Ins-Paid in 06/22 good until 6/30/22
Personnel Service Subtotal 1,020,225$   926,841$   368,096$   652,129$   

REVENUES/EXPENSES Proposed Prior Year Actuals Balance % Notes

Operating Expenses

Office space Lease 32,000$   32,000$   8,572$   23,428$   27% Lease TBD (unrestricted)
Professional & Contract Services 65,000$   65,000$   26,241$   38,759$   40% Legal, PR/HR, Cons+Int Controller(Unrestricted)

Telecommunications 30,000$   30,000$   2,100$   27,900$   7% IT Support, Software, Internet, Phone, Website (CLSA*) and 
Communications Allowance

Delivery 66,500$   66,000$   8,094$   58,406$   12% 22/23 expenses of $19,965 paid from 21/22 CLSA Funds.

Audit Fees 12,200$   12,270$   2,855$   9,345$   23% Fedak-$9,760 for FY 20/21 last completed audit. 

Software Licenses 3,479$    3,479$   -$  3,479$   0% Keeper, Intuit (paid biennially)
Office Supplies & Printing 8,500$    8,500$   3,758$   4,742$   44% Office Supplies, Postage, etc. (Unrestricted)

eResources 445,338$    137,180$   -$  445,338$   0% $368,435 PressReader; $1,212 Gale Archives; $75,691 TBD

Memberships 14,500$   14,500$   13,590$   910$   94% Califa, CLA, etc. (Unrestricted)-Membership for year

Travel & Conferences 15,000$   10,000$   920$   14,080$   6% Travel for meetings, Education, and audit (Unrestricted)

Postage 800$    800$   89$   711$   11%
Other 350$    350$   45$   305$   13% Bank Analysis Fees

Operating Expenses Subtotal 693,667$   380,079$   66,264$   627,403$   

Grant Expenses Passthrough Funds

Grant Projected Expenses 3,364,024$   3,187,565$   -$  3,364,024$       0% Projected FY22/23 - Actual grants pending

Grant Expenses Subtotal 3,364,024$   3,187,565$   -$  3,364,024$       

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,077,916$   4,494,485$   434,360$   -$   

Surplus (Deficit) (183,084)$   410,491$   1,728,017$   

As of October 31, 2022 2,669,899$   
As of September 30, 2022 1,832,835$   
As of September 30, 2022 82,304$   

SCLC ACCOUNT BALANCES

SCLC MEMBER DEPOSIT ACCOUNT

California Employer's Pension Prefunding Trust (CEPPT)

Pacific Western Bank 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

AC Agenda Item 06a

12



SCLC FY22/23 Proposed Budget
October 31, 2022

As of October 31, 2022 133,012$          

Estimated Expended Balance
E-Resources 65,848$            -$                   65,848$            

Resource Sharing -$                   -$                   -$                   
Delivery -$                   -$                   -$                   

Telecommunication -$                   -$                   -$                   
Total Estimated Carry Over 65,848$            -$                   65,848$            

Estimated Expended Balance
E-Resources 288,419$          -$                   288,419$          

Resource Sharing 35,000$            -$                   35,000$            
Audit 6,905$               6,905$               -$                   Paid Audit Fees as of 9/30/22

Delivery 22,013$            15,752$            6,261$               
Telecommunication 21,742$            2,100$               19,642$            

Total Estimated Carry Over 374,079$          24,757$            349,322$          

Digilabs - to be reallocated?

To be used toward future delivery expenses
Internet, website, IT support, phone/fax/VOIP/telecomm equipment and software

FY2021/22 CLSA Communications & Delivery - Projected (Restricted)
Notes

To be allocated

CARRY OVER CLSA FUNDS

Digilabs - Approved on 10/5 by CLSB E-Resources
Reliant

Reallocation from Resource Sharing per CLSB 10/5

Pacific Western Bank

FY2020/21 CLSA Communications & Delivery - Projected (Restricted)

Internet, website, IT support, phone/fax/VOIP/telecomm equipment and software

Notes

TBD

13



Southern California Library Cooperative 
254 North Lake Avenue #874 • Pasadena, California 91101 

(626) 283-5949 •  Fax (626) 283-5949 
Website: http://www.socallibraries.org • E-mail: sclcadmin@socallibraries.org 

 

 

 

 
  AC Agenda Item 07 

 
 
 
DATE:   November 30, 2022 
TO:   SCLC Administrative Council 
FROM:  Caryn Shapiro – Interim Controller, SCLC  
SUBJECT:  Audited Financial Statements FY2020/2021 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  A copy of the Audited Financial Statements FY 20/21 is included for your  
Review.  The Audit and Finance Committee reviewed and approved the report at their 9/28/22 
Meeting. 
 
OVERVIEW OF FISCAL YEAR ENDING 2021: 
 
>       The Cooperative’s net position decreased 757.81%, or $288,879 from ongoing operations. 
 
>       The Cooperative’s total revenues decreased 15.59%, or $700,466 to     
         $3,791,311 from $4,491,777. 
 
>        The Cooperative’s total expenses decreased 18.98%, or $955,955 to $4,080,190 from  
 $5,036,145. 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The decrease in the Cooperative’s net position for the Fiscal year was $288,879.   
The COVID-19 Outbreak in the United States has caused business disruption through labor 
shortages and business closings.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The Audit and Finance Committee recommends to the Administrative 
Council to approve the Annual Audited Financial Statements, June 30, 2021. 
 
 

14



DR
AF
T

AC Agenda Item 07a

15



DR
AF
T

16



DR
AF
T

17



Government Auditing Standards 

DR
AF
T

18



DR
AF
T

19



DR
AF
T

20



Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Government Auditing Standards

Opinions

DR
AF
TTTTF

nts 

AF
T

AF
T

AFAFRADR
A

DRDRDRDDDD

21



Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Government Auditing Standards 

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

ndards ndard

ng Standardsng Standa

22



Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

accrual basis of accounting

net position

financial position increases or 
decreases financial health

DR
AF
T

accountingaccounting

23



Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued 

Governmental funds 
governmental activities

near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, balances of spendable resources

governmental funds
governmental activities

governmental funds governmental activitiesal fundsal funds govern

24



Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued 

Governmental Activities:

governmental funds
spendable

unassigned fund balance 

unassigned fund balance

DR
AF
TTTTTTTFTFTFTFTAFAFFFAFAFRARARARARARA

25



Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued 

DR
AF
TFTFTTTAAAFAFRARAAARARAAAAARARARARA

26



DR
AF
T

27



DR
AF
T

28



Governmental Activities:

DR
AF
TTTTT

29



DR
AF
TTTTTTT

AAAA

30



31



DR
AF
TFTFTTTFTFTTTAA

32



DR
AF
T

33



DR
AF
T

34



DR
AF
T

35



basic financial statements

Government-wide Financial Statements
economic resource 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements 

current financial resources

DR
AF
T

Financial Statements Financial Statements 

36



Governmental Fund Financial Statements, continued 

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements 

economic resources

Fiduciary Activities.  

DR
AF
T

37



Majority Equity Interests—an amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 14 and No. 61

DR
AF
T

38



DR
AF
T

39



restricted net investment in capital assets 

DR
AF
T

stment in capital assets stment in capital ass

40



Fund Balance Policy 

DR
AF
T

41



Authorized Deposits and Investments 

Cash with California Local Agency Investment Fund 

Custodial Credit Risk 

deposits

investments 

DR
AF
T

depositdeposit

42



Custodial Credit Risk, continued 

Interest Rate Risk 

Credit Risk 

DR
AF
T

DRDR

43



Plan Description 

Benefits Provided 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

Total OPEB Liability 

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs 

DR
AF
TFTFTFF

Other Inputs Inputs 

44



Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs, continued 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 

DR
AF
TTT

B Liability to Changes inility to Changes in

45



OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

Plan Description DR
AF
TTTTT

AFAF

46



Benefits Provided 

Contributions DR
AF
TFTFTAFAF
TT

47



Net Pension Liability 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

DDR
AF
TFTFTFTFTFFFFs Related to Pensions to Pensions 

DD

48



Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, continued 

Actuarial Assumptions

DR
AF
T

49



Discount Rate

DRR
AF
T

DR
A

DRDR

50



Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

RA
FTTTTTTTTTTT

RR

51



Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87 

Leases.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 89 

Accounting for Interest Cost incurred Before the End 
of a Construction Period

Codification of Accounting 
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA 
Pronouncements, DR

AF
Tment No. 89 t No. 89 

Accounting for InterAccounting fo

g Guidance Contained g Guidance Co

52



Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 91 

Conduit Debt Obligations

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 92 

Omnibus 2020DR
AF
T

Standards Board StatemStandards Boa

53



Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 93 

Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 94 

Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and 
Availability Payment Arrangements

DR
AF
T

Board Statement No. 94 Board Statement No. 94 

PubliP
mentsents

54



Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 96 

Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 97 

Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an 
amendment of GASB Statements No. 41 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32.

DR
AF
Tn Component Unit Critn Component Un

ection 457 Deferred Coection 457 Deferred C
nd a supersession of GAnd a supersession of GA

55



Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 98 

Grant Awards 

Litigation 

DR
AF
T

56



DR
AF
T

57



DR
AF
T

58



DR
AF
T

59



DR
AF
TTTTTTT

AF
T

AF
TFTFTAAAFAFFFAAAFAFRARARARARARARARARARA

60



C
ha

ng
es

 in
 B

en
ef

it 
Te

rm
s

C
ha

ng
e 

of
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds

DR
AF

TTTTTFTFTFTFT AFAFFF RARARARA

61



C
ha

ng
es

 o
f A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
, c

on
tin

ue
d

DR
AF

T

62



DR
AF

TTTTTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFT

63



C
ha

ng
es

 i
n 

B
en

ef
it 

Te
rm

s 
– 

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 –

 

DR
AF

TFTFTFTFT AFAFFFAAAAAFAFAFAF RARARARARARARARARARARARA D

64



DR
AF
T

65



DR
AF
T

66



Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

deficiency in internal control

material weakness

significant deficiency

Government Auditing Standards

DR
AF
TTT

G

TTFTFTAFAFAFRARARADR
A

DRDRDRDRDD

67



Government Auditing Standards, 

Government Auditing Standards

DR
AF
T

68



Significant Deficiency 

69



Southern California Library Cooperative 
254 North Lake Avenue #874 • Pasadena, California 91101 

(626) 283-5949 •  Fax (626) 283-5949 
Website: http://www.socallibraries.org • E-mail: sclcadmin@socallibraries.org 

 

 

 
AC Agenda Item 08 

 
DATE:  December 1, 2022 
TO:  Administrative Council   
FROM: Elizabeth Goldman, Past Chair  
SUBJECT: 2022-25 Strategic Plan Updates and Actions 
 
BACKGROUND:  The SCLC Administrative Council approved a three-year strategic plan (Plan) 
on August 24, 2022. The Plan includes a timeline with specific actions and activities to take 
throughout the three-year period in order to achieve the stated goals and objectives. 
 
The Plan identifies three overarching strategic priorities: 

• SCLC will serve as a resource nexus, connecting member libraries and their populations 
with a wide variety of innovative, relevant, and high-value resources. 

• SCLC will communicate its operations and advocacy in a modern, timely, and effective 
manner. 

• SCLC will operate in a fiscally and operationally sustainable manner. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
Fiscal Year 2022-23 activities identified in the Plan are: 
 
Segment 1: Executive Director 

• Hire an Executive Director (ED) 
 
Segment 2: Transparency 

• Develop SCLC 101 guide to the organization 
• Explain budget and revenue sources as part of SCLC 101 

 
Segment 3: Planning 

• Review the SCLC mission and vision 
• Conduct an annual membership survey 
• Hold an annual planning session 

 
Segment 4: Member library engagement 

• Review and expand staff-driven interest groups 
• Provide report on interest groups to Administrative Council 

 

70



 

 

An ad hoc committee for the ED is wrapping up its work. The new ED will develop SCLC 101, 
responding to Segments 1 and 2. 
 
Two new ad hoc committees are proposed to respond to Segments 3 and 4. For Segment 3, 
Planning, the ad hoc committee should consist of AC members. For Segment 4, the ad hoc 
committee could partly or primarily be made up of SCLC member library staff who participate in 
interest groups, with an AC member serving as chair and/or liaison to the AC. Both committees 
would have a term of service of December 2022-June 2023. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Identify individuals to chair and/or serve on an ad hoc planning committee 
and an ad hoc interest group committee. 
 
ATTACHMENT: Strategic Plan timeline 

71



  Proposed Timing for SCLC Priorities 
QUARTER 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 

Establish staff-driven interest groups (e.g. marketing, youth services, collections, etc.). 

Form a team/committee to explore and strategize the implementation of shared resources. 

Develop a centralized location of a collection of best practices and ideas to share. 

Resource Nexus Conduct annual (or semi-annual) SCLC regional public needs assessments, scalable to local 
and regional needs. 

Create “Intro to SCLC” for all library staff members. 

Increase transparency so that the SCLC Administrative Council has a clear understanding 
of budget and revenue sources. 

Transparency, 
Advocacy & 
Engagement 

Create an RFP to hire a digital media developer to establish a more robust online presence 
for SCLC. 

Communicate in a variety of publicity formats (social media, streaming, television, radio, etc.) with 
simple messages that apply to all our libraries and are designed to motivate the public to visit. 

Identify and articulate SCLC mission. 

Hire strong, knowledgeable, and dynamic executive director to provide support, guidance, 
and leadership. 

Organizational 
Health & 
Sustainability 

Hold an annual planning session for SCLC Administrative Council. 

Diversify revenue by reviewing membership fees, looking for additional local grant opportunities. 

Assess organizational structure, roles, and responsibilities to support operating efficiencies 
for a nimble and responsive organization. 

Contract with a financial expert to assess cost of current and enhanced services. 

Create a process for current directors to mentor upcoming/new directors. 

Develop fiscal sustainability by putting funds to best use. 

Southern California Library Cooperative STRATEGIC PLAN 

FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 

AC Agenda Item 08a

72



Southern California Library Cooperative 
254 North Lake Avenue #874 • Pasadena, California 91101 

(626) 283-5949 •  Fax (626) 283-5949 
Website: http://www.socallibraries.org • E-mail: sclcadmin@socallibraries.org 

 

 

 

 
 

 
DATE:   November 30, 2022 
TO:   Administrative Council 
FROM:  Gary Shaffer, Administrative Council Chair 
SUBJECT:  PressReader Update and Next Steps – (DISCUSSION) 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND: In September of 2021, SCLC enter into an agreement with Baker & 
Taylor (B&T) in the amount of $632,332 for a 2-year-period to procure PressReader on 
behalf of the Cooperative. July 1, 2022 the LA Times was abruptly removed from the 
platform without notice. SCLC later learned that this was at the direction of the LA 
Times. PressReader and Baker & Taylor were not made aware of this removal until it 
occurred.    
 
At the August 24th Administrative Council meeting the following actions were approved 
in order for SCLC to approach the LA Times directly in an effort to convince them to re-
enter the PressReader platform: 
 
1) Conduct a survey of all member libraries to collect current annual spending on 
physical subscriptions to the LA Times.  
2) Authorize the Chair to draft a letter advising LA Times management of the negative 
impact to our member libraries’ residents, the amount of revenue we provide them, and 
asking them to please enter into negotiations with PressReader.  
3) Conduct any follow up negotiations with the LA Times. 
 
The survey was distributed to and completed by all SCLC members libraries. A letter 
was drafted by the Council Chair and shared with member libraries for feedback and to 
provide each of their signatures for the final copy of the letter. 
 
Baker & Taylor has updated SCLC staff that talks are still ongoing between 
PressReader and the LA Times concerning this issue, but no details were made 
available. 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: There is no additional fiscal impact at this time, as the contract has 
already been approved using grant funds from a previous year.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Informational. 

AC Agenda Item 09 
   

73



1 

California State Library, Library Development Services 

Cooperative Library System Liaison Report 

November 21, 2022 

Funding Opportunities Through the California State Library 
Please visit the grants page of the California State Library website for a listing 
and timetable of new and upcoming funding opportunities and statewide 
resources available. 

FY21-22 Public Libraries Survey 
Submissions were due on Tuesday, November 8, 2022. Instructions, a blank excel 
template of data elements, the recording of the August 23rd information session, 
and other helpful documents are available on the State Library’s statistics page. 
Please contact meg.depriest@library.ca.gov if you have missed the deadline. 

Directors Networking Conversations 
Networking conversations for library directors continue and an invitation to 
participate is sent out on the directors’ listserv as dates are scheduled. There will 
not be a Directors call in December. The next call will be held in January 2023, 
date and time TBD. 

LSTA Inspiration Grants Now Open 
LSTA-funded Inspiration Grants enable libraries to seek support for programs that 
don’t necessarily fit within the parameters of other funding opportunities. 
Because the Inspiration award cycle is different from the typical LSTA grant year, 
library staff are empowered to react to “a-ha moments,” meet their 
communities’ expressed needs and aspirations, and carry out innovative 
projects mid-year. 

The application period is now open and will close on December 30, 2022, at 5:00 
p.m. Applications will be reviewed as they are received, and funds will be
distributed as they are available. Project periods will vary depending on when
applications are received and the needs of each individual project.

Learn about the application process, the timeline, eligibility requirements, and 
more by visiting the Inspiration Grants page: 
https://www.library.ca.gov/grants/inspiration/    
Questions? Email LSTAgrants@library.ca.gov and include “Inspiration” in the 
subject line. 

AC Agenda Item 15

74

https://www.library.ca.gov/grants/
https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/statistics/#resources
mailto:meg.depriest@library.ca.gov
https://www.library.ca.gov/grants/inspiration/
mailto:LSTAgrants@library.ca.gov


2 
 

LSTA Public Library Staff Education Program  
The Public Library Staff Education Program is a tuition reimbursement program 
developed by the California State Library to improve library services to 
California’s diverse communities. To support the professional development of 
California public libraries, the California State Library works with cooperative 
library systems to provide public and county law library staff with tuition 
reimbursement for courses required for a Master’s degree in Library and 
Information Science. The student application call for the 2022-2023 Public Library 
Staff Education Program (PLSEP) closed 10/28/2022 12 p.m. (noon). Student 
applications are in the review process and system applications have been sent 
out November 2022. For questions, contact PLSEP@library.ca.gov 
 
Library Engagement Outreach 
State and federal funds support online tools for California public libraries, 
including K-12 tutoring, eBook collections, workforce upskilling, library staff 
learning opportunities, and so much more. Beginning September 13th, the 
California State Library will host a series of biweekly online workshops to share 
information about the wide variety of online resources available to libraries at no 
cost. Visit the CALL blog to learn more about the topics being covered and 
register to attend. 
 
Tutoring Project 
Every internet connected Californian is now able to access live, 24/7 online 
tutoring and homework help in all K-12 subjects. The passing of AB 128 by the 
California State Legislature enabled the California State Library to partner with 
the Pacific Library Partnership in bringing this service to all CA Public Libraries.  All 
California public libraries are able to offer Brainfuse’s online tutoring and 
homework assistance service, HelpNow, to their users for two years at no cost. 
Every California student, with or without a library card, has access to 24/7 online 
tutoring in core K-12 subjects. Spanish language tutors will be available as well 
as tutors fluent in Mandarin, Cantonese, Vietnamese, and Tagalog.  
 
See here for Full details on the Statewide tutoring project 
 
Questions? If you have questions about the Statewide Online Tutoring Program, 
please contact the California State Library at catutoring@library.ca.gov or our 
onboarding partner, the Pacific Library Partnership, at tutoring at 
tutoring@plpinfo.org  
 
 
California Library Literacy Services 
CLLS networking calls and trainings continue on a regular basis. Upcoming 
training sessions will help libraries prepare for AmeriCorps, new ESL services and 
more. Please visit the new CLLS training and meeting calendar! The 2021-2022 

75

https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/public-library-staff-education-program/
mailto:PLSEP@library.ca.gov
https://callacademy.org/free-eresources/
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB128
https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/online-tutoring/
mailto:catutoring@library.ca.gov
mailto:tutoring@plpinfo.org
https://libraryliteracy.org/clls-training-calendar/


3 
 

CLLS annual final report is now open and will be due Monday, November 14, at 
5 p.m.  Instructions and webinar recordings are available at 
https://libraryliteracy.org/for-coordinators/reporting-state-funding/.  
 
CLLS has opened an additional application round for ESL funding for CLLS 
libraries who have not yet applied. Round “2.5” applications are now open and 
due no later than December 15 for funding that starts with the budget period 
January-June 2023. The final round of applications for new participants will open 
in early 2023 for funding that starts July 1, 2023. Contact Bev Schwartzberg or 
Allyson Jeffredo for information. 
 
Sustainable California Libraries LSTA Awardees Announced! 
Twenty California local library systems have been selected to receive first-ever 
funding from the State Library to support projects focused on sustainability and 
climate resilience. 
 
Projects receiving funding through the new Sustainable California Libraries grant 
program focus on climate education, environment-focused civic engagement, 
water conservation, air quality, energy efficiency, reducing waste, and 
supporting local climate action and resilience plans. 
 
Specifically, these grants support activities such as environmental education 
programs, teaching gardens, lending libraries including tools, seeds and other 
items tailored to community needs, climate-focused service groups, 
sustainability conversations, and more. 
 
See the full list at: https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/sustainable/ 
Read the 10/25 Press Release! Email sustainability@library.ca.gov with any 
questions or comments. 
 
Career Online High School 
California libraries can offer a no-cost, online high school diploma program to 
residents ages 19 and up. Career Online High School graduates receive an 
accredited diploma and a career certificate in one of ten fields. Enrollees have 
up to 18 months to complete the program. The next deadline for new libraries to 
join Career Online High School or for current participants to apply for additional 
scholarships is December 10, 2022. 
 
CopyCat Grants 
The 2022/23 CopyCat Grants call for application has closed. Thirty-two library 
jurisdictions have been selected to receive funding! Applicants have been 
issued award letters. For Grant Guide information, please visit Manage Your 
Current Grant - California State Library. Grantees’ first point of contact is their 

76

https://libraryliteracy.org/for-coordinators/reporting-state-funding/
mailto:beverly.schwartzberg@library.ca.gov
mailto:allyson.jeffredo@library.ca.gov
https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/sustainable/
https://www.library.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/10/Press-Release-2022-10-25-Sustainable.pdf
mailto:sustainability@library.ca.gov
https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=i1YEYCFHSkijGuCh1KlKyxYo9FSjvUJGkuXjcCc66VVURUpJVTcxQVVCNVpTVFFUSVZNWjVSNkRRUi4u
https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=i1YEYCFHSkijGuCh1KlKyxYo9FSjvUJGkuXjcCc66VVURUpJVTcxQVVCNVpTVFFUSVZNWjVSNkRRUi4u
https://forms.office.com/pages/responsepage.aspx?id=i1YEYCFHSkijGuCh1KlKyxYo9FSjvUJGkuXjcCc66VVUMThYWjg0TzBDQzI2WU1ITUNNMEhJV0tIVy4u
https://forms.office.com/pages/responsepage.aspx?id=i1YEYCFHSkijGuCh1KlKyxYo9FSjvUJGkuXjcCc66VVUMThYWjg0TzBDQzI2WU1ITUNNMEhJV0tIVy4u
https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/copycat-grants/
https://www.library.ca.gov/grants/manage/
https://www.library.ca.gov/grants/manage/


4 
 

project advisor. For other CopyCat questions, please contact us at 
LSTAGrants@library.ca.gov 
 
Zip Books Program 
The 2022/23 Zip Books program call for applications has closed. Congratulations 
to the 96 library jurisdictions have been issued award letters! Program 
information can be found at Zip Books Program - California State Library For Zip 
Books questions, please contact us at ZipBooks@library.ca.gov  
 
California Libraries Learn (CALL) 
CALL Homegrown features learning opportunities suggested and designed by 
California library staff. If you have an idea for a great program, fill out the CALL 
for Presentations! Plan your team’s professional development by visiting 
www.callacademy.org and check the frequently updated calendar to explore 
the options. Free courses, weekly webinars, and cohort-based learning continue 
throughout the year. CALL has its own newsletter, CALL Letters, and users can 
subscribe directly for up-to-date information on staff professional development 
needs. Encourage your staff members to create a login to access the many 
online, self-paced learning opportunities available through CALL Academy. 
CALL is a joint project of the California State Library and the California Library 
Association, and is supported in whole or in part by the U.S. Institute of Museum 
and Library Services under the provisions of the Library Services and Technology 
Act, administered in California by the State Librarian. 
 
California State Library Parks Passes  
21,000 additional parks passes are shipping this week and next. All libraries will 
be getting either what they requested or more, and can hold passes back to be 
replacements, rather than waiting for Parks to ship a replacement. You can 
begin planning marketing, programming, and outreach to get the passes into 
the communities that may face park access barriers now. I hope the updated 
toolkit for the Parks Pass program is on the CSL website, with links to flyers, 
circulation guidelines, and more are useful – please let me know how I can help. 
The Evaluation Toolkit now has a Spanish version of the survey. 
 
A new and expanded Parks Pass grant opportunity will be opening up in 
December, so as you get your additional passes and start to imagine 
complementary programming and outreach to underserved communities who 
may face parks access barriers, please dream big. Current grantees are 
welcome to apply. 
 
Thanks for your circulation statistics. Below are some results: 

• Libraries reporting: 174 (last quarter: 174) 
• Number of circulations: 14,219 (last quarter: 8,341) 

77

mailto:LSTAGrants@library.ca.gov
https://www.library.ca.gov/grants/zip-books/
mailto:ZipBooks@library.ca.gov
https://callacademy.org/call-for-presentations/
https://callacademy.org/call-for-presentations/
http://www.callacademy.org/
https://callacademy.org/events/
https://callacademy.org/newsletter/
https://my.nicheacademy.com/callacademy
https://my.nicheacademy.com/callacademy
https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/parks-pass/toolkit/
https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/parks-pass/toolkit/
https://www.library.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/PPP2122-Spanish-survey.docx


5 
 

• Average checkout per pass: 4 (last quarter: 2.38) 
• Average number of holds: 64 

Top 10 number of circulations: 
LA COUNTY LIBRARY 1,045 
LOS ANGELES PUBLIC LIBRARY 810 
SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY LIBRARY 598 
SAN DIEGO PUBLIC LIBRARY 536 
SAN DIEGO COUNTY LIBRARY 373 
RIVERSIDE COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM 372 
SAN JOSE PUBLIC LIBRARY 347 
SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC LIBRARY 313 
ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARIES 295 

  
Top 5 circ to pass checkout ratio: 

WHITTIER PUBLIC LIBRARY 17 
CHULA VISTA PUBLIC LIBRARY 14 
NEWPORT BEACH PUBLIC LIBRARY 12 
MONTEREY PARK BRUGGEMEYER LIBRARY 12 
BELVEDERE-TIBURON LIBRARY 11 

 
Please feel free to contact parkspass@library.ca.gov with any questions. 
  
Building Forward Infrastructure Funding for California Libraries 
We are currently preparing Round Two of the Building Forward Infrastructure 
Program. This opportunity will open in the first quarter of 2023. With new funding 
providing the legislature, the State Library has approximately $174 million dollars 
left to award. 
  
We invite California cities, counties, and special library districts to submit 
Statements of Interest for Round Two of the Building Forward Grant Program. 
  
Statements of Interest are non-binding. Potential applicants are not required to 
submit Statements of Interest. Information submitted during the Statement of 
Interest period will be used by the State Library to ensure that the Building 
Forward program continues to align with the needs of California’s communities. 
  
The Statement of Interest form was emailed to each California Public Library 
Director on Tuesday, November 15th. The form is also available on our website.  
  
https://www.library.ca.gov/grants/infrastructure/ 
  
The form will close on Friday, December 16th.   

78

mailto:parkspass@library.ca.gov


6 
 

   
With any questions, please email buildingforward@library.ca.gov. 
 
 
eBooks for All CA 
The LSTA eBooks for All grant program is now accepting applications! We have 
allocated $1.25 million in LSTA funds to support collection development grants 
inside of the statewide collection. With these grants, your library or library 
collaborative will be able to guide and develop a collection that is accessible 
to all public libraries across the state.  Further details on the project, including 
how to apply, can be found here.   
  
The deadline to apply is December 9th at 5 pm.   
 
 
Digital Navigators / Connected California Program 
Digital Navigators help Californians: 

• Find low-cost internet service and devices and provide basic information 
and instruction on internet devices available for check out at local 
libraries through the Bridging the Digital Divide and Home Connectivity Kits 
projects. 

• Learn foundational computer skills, such as how to navigate the internet 
or how to set up an email account. 

• Find and use online resources to improve their lives, including resources to 
assist with career development, guidance on the use of CAreer Pathways 
platforms and offerings, applying for a job, and more. 

 
Digital Navigator support is available in English and Spanish. Learn more at 
https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/digital-navigators/ or 
https://connectedca.org/ and https://connectedca.org/espanol_inicio 
 
If you would like more information about this program, free for Californians and 
available to all libraries through ARPA and LSTA grant funding, please reach out 
to christian@theyerconsulting.com or DigNavs@library.ca.gov. 
 
 
CAreer Pathways: Digital Workforce Platforms for All California Public Libraries 
CAreer Pathways resources for the next two years have been announced! These 
resources, supported by an investment from the State of California, began 
October 1, 2022. Your jurisdiction’s CAreer Pathways contacts have received 
resource update emails and access to the Canva toolkit for customizable assets 
including bookmarks, posters, web banners and more! The ARPA-funded CAreer 
Pathways outreach campaign launched for the public on Monday, September 
19 and will continue through November 30, 2022. 

79

https://www.library.ca.gov/grants/ebooks-for-all/
https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/home-connectivity-kits/
https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-public/career-pathways/
https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/digital-navigators/
https://connectedca.org/
https://connectedca.org/espanol_inicio
https://connectedca.org/espanol_inicio
mailto:christian@theyerconsulting.com
mailto:DigNavs@library.ca.gov


7 
 

 
Learn more and register for upcoming trainings on the Staff Resources page: 
https://www.library.ca.gov/grants/career-pathways/ 
 
CAreer Pathways Marketing, Outreach, and Partnership Best Practices 
Wednesday, December 14, 2022, 11:00 am – 12:00 pm 
 
All webinars will be recorded and shared on CALL Academy. More webinars 
announced soon for January – June 2023.  
 
If you have questions or would like to get involved in upcoming webinars to 
showcase how your library and community are using the CAreer Pathways 
resources, reach out: CAPathways@library.ca.gov.  

Links for public: https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-public/career-pathways/ 
OR www.library.ca.gov/pathways 

 

California Library Connect 
The California Library Connect Program grant (formerly the High-Speed 
Broadband in California Public Libraries) is now live and accepting applications: 
https://californialibraryconnect.org/  - libraries may apply for grants to cover 
eligible IT/network infrastructure equipment and expenses, as well as the first-
year costs of upgrading or installing a new high speed Internet circuit. 
This program also supports California public libraries by connecting them to high-
speed internet through the California Research and Education Network 
(CalREN) — a high-capacity public-sector broadband network. Since 2015, 
California Library Connect has connected over 90 percent of its public library 
jurisdictions. California Library Connect is supported through the partnership of 
the California State Library, CENIC, and CTC Technology & Energy. We have also 
launched the California Collaborative Connectivity Grant, a separate grant 
opportunity that provides gap funding for libraries and partner anchor institutions 
to construct broadband circuits to connect underserved communities.  More 
information may be found on the website referenced above. 
 
Get Connected! California/Affordable Connectivity Program 
All California Libraries are invited to participate in the Get Connected! Initiative. 
Get Connected! promotes the Affordable Connectivity Program (ACP) which 
provides a monthly discount of up to $30 off home internet to qualifying families.  
Libraries are encouraged to host enrollment events, with the support of CETF 
and Get Connected! These enrollment events will support eligible families 
interested in applying for ACP, answer questions about the ACP benefit, and 
provide hands-on assistance with the application. Patrons will be encouraged to 
bring the required documents to apply. 

80

https://www.library.ca.gov/grants/career-pathways/
https://zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_pAtYSH3WQuutywMHv4QxdQ
https://zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_pAtYSH3WQuutywMHv4QxdQ
https://my.nicheacademy.com/callacademy/course/39032/
mailto:CAPathways@library.ca.gov
https://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-public/career-pathways/
http://www.library.ca.gov/pathways
https://californialibraryconnect.org/


8 
 

To participate in an enrollment event and learn how you can help your patrons 
Get Connected!, please visit https://forms.gle/k6YiHeH8Suwhvxy97. For more 
information on ACP please visit: www.internetforallnow.org/applytoday. 

81



Southern California Library Cooperative 
254 North Lake Avenue #874 • Pasadena, California 91101 

 (626) 283-5949 •  Fax (626) 283-5949 
Website: http://www.socallibraries.org • E-mail: sclcadmin@socallibraries.org 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

SCLC Meeting Dates 
2022/23 

Approved 05252022 
Updated 10212022 

 
Friday, July 22, 2022 - Special 
4:00pm Executive Committee 

Via Zoom 
 

Wednesday, August 24, 2022 
1:00pm Executive Committee 
2:15pm Administrative Council 

Alhambra 
 

Wednesday, October 26, 2022 
1:00pm Executive Committee, only 

Glendale 
 

Wednesday, November 30, 2022 
1:00pm Executive Committee 
2:15pm Administrative Council 

Whittier 
 

Wednesday, January 25, 2023 
1:00pm Executive Committee, only 

Via Zoom 
 

Wednesday, March 22, 2023  
1:00pm Executive Committee 
2:15pm Administrative Council 

Signal Hill 
 

Wednesday, May 24, 2023 
1:00pm Executive Committee 
2:15pm Administrative Council 

Location TBD  
 

82


	SCLC_FY2223_AC_Agenda_11302022.pdf
	SCLC_FY2223_AC_Action_Items_11302022.pdf
	SCLC_FY2223_AC_Item_03a_Minutes_Draft_08242022.pdf
	SCLC_FY2223_AC_Item_05_SCLC_Controller_Staff_Report.pdf
	SCLC_FY2223_AC_Item_06_Budget_Status_Staff_Report_11302022.pdf
	SCLC_FY2223_AC_Item_06a_Budget_Status_Staff_Report_11302022.pdf
	SCLC_FY2223_AC_Item_07_Audit_Report_Staff_Report.pdf
	SCLC_FY2223_AC_Item_07a_Audit_06302021_FY2021_Unsigned.pdf
	SCLC_FY2223_AC_Item_08_Strategic Plan_12012022.pdf
	SCLC_FY2223_AC_Item_08a_Strategic Plan_12012022.pdf
	SCLC_FY2223_AC_Item_09_PressReader_Staff_Report.pdf
	SCLC_FY2223_AC_Item_15_CSL_Report.pdf
	California State Library, Library Development Services
	Cooperative Library System Liaison Report
	November 21, 2022

	SCLC_FY2223_Meeting_Schedule_07192022.pdf



